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State of Rhode Island 

Department of Administration / Division of Purchases 
One Capitol Hill, Providence, Rhode Island 02908-5855 

Tel: (401) 574-8100   Fax: (401) 574-8387 
 
 

 
ADDENDUM # 1 

 
  

                                                               
Addendum Date: 02/09/2016 
 
RFP #  7550208   
 
TITLE: MPA# 105: General Office Supplies, School Supplies, Paper, Promotional Items and                               
Toner Cartridges 
 
ADDENDUM DESCRIPTION: Question Period Update: This addendum provides responses to 
the questions which were received and accepted up until February 3, 2016 at 10:00 AM ET. 
 
 
Thank you, 
Meredith Skelly 
Interdepartmental Project Manager 
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Vendor Questions for RFP # 7550208 

 
1. Question: This office product bid, is it for all entities of the state ? (school, 

municipalities, government departments, etc?) 
Answer:  Yes, the bid includes all State Entities which include State Agencies and  
State Schools as well as Member Entities as defined in Section 2, Tables 1, 2, 3 
and 4. 
 

2. Question: I read in the RFP that the annual spend is about $10 million a year, is 
that the accurate amount for this bid?  
Answer:  Yes, the State and Member Entities combined did spend this much in 
2015 and do approximate “The State of Rhode Island including State agencies, 
quasi public agencies, institutions of higher education, municipalities and school 
districts spend approximately $10 million dollars annually on Office Supplies.” as 
referenced in Section 2, page 9 of the RFP.  
 

3. Question: Would you be able to send me any usage reports for this contract from 
the last year or so?  
Answer: The raw report for 2.75 years will be included with the .zip file 
7550208A1 posted in conjunction with this addendum. 
 

4. Question: Regarding pricing the various tabs on the State’s Cost Proposal Excel 
file, on Page 36 the State expresses, in Section 5 (Cost Proposal), Subsection 15, 
that the State prefers the exact item specified.  Meanwhile, Table 5 on RFP Pages 
24-26 references EPP specifications that “Vendor will provide office supply that 
at minimum” comply with those specifications, while RFP Section 23.7 on Page 
29 goes on to reference that “Vendor will recommend equivalent substitution(s) 
meeting the EPP requirements in the event their supply chain does not have a 
specified item(s) meeting the minimum EPP requirements.  However, the clear 
instructions pertaining to the sub tabs for General Office Supplies, Toner, and 
School Supplies are for lower cost alternatives to OEM items, which may or may 
not be consistent with the EPP requirements set forth on Page 24-26.  In fact, the 
OEM exact item itself may or may not conform to those EPP requirements.  
Therefore, we are unclear as to how the State wishes bidders to proceed with 
regards to offering items that are compliant with its published EPP criteria if 
neither the OEM item or the lowest cost alternative for a given OEM item meets 
those criteria.  Please clarify. 
Answer: The State overall is looking for the lowest cost options with the greatest 
EPP attributes.  If a core item does not have any EPP options, then the State will 
accept the item as is and the vendor should specify 0% in the EPP column on the 
cost proposal excel spreadsheet.  However if the item does offer EPP options later 
on during the life of the contract, the State wants the Vendor to bring this to the 
State’s attention as part of the regularly scheduled core review. 
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5. Question: Contract terms on Page 36 state that The award(s) will be for three (3) 
years, starting April 1, 2016 through March 31, 2019 with the potential of two (2) 
one-year extensions at the sole option of the State.  Thus, to be clear, please 
confirm that if the State, at its sole option, elects to renew the contract for a 
possible fourth and fifth year, then the vendor will be required to hold pricing for 
General Office Supplies and School Supplies for a period of five years. 

Answer: Yes. All unit pricing should be based upon the initial three (3) year term 
and if the State opts to extend for one or two additional years, the State expects the 
pricing to hold during the applicable extensions. The State is requesting the 
Vendor to propose an additional percentage discount on pricing if the State were to 
agree to a four (4) or five (5) year contract, See Page 47 of the RFP. 
 
 

6. Question: Pertaining to Section E1, Subsection 3 on Page 46, the State is giving 
bidders the opportunity via the language contained in this passage to state 
exclusions to the Standard Discount off List Price.  This would effectively 
provide bidders with the opportunity to bid discounts with a Gross Profit Floor, 
meaning that a bidder could hypothetically quote discounting for the State and 
exclude items for which it failed to make a specified gross profit percentage on 
that item or items at the discount quoted.  Such a submission would make off core 
submissions extremely difficult for the State to quantify, and, moreover, virtually 
impossible to audit/validate on an ongoing basis, as off core pricing could be tied 
to a Gross Profit Floor, and not a set discount, on any such items so disclosed by 
the bidder.  Could the State please offer feedback on this section of the bid and 
specify definitively whether or not a Gross Profit Floor will be accepted as part of 
bidders’ submissions? 
Answer: Upon further review, the State is eliminating Section 5.E.3 (Page 46) 
for the RFP as follows, “Exceptions, Exclusions and Non-Standard Discount 
Off List Prices:  If applicable, provide any specific details in line 6 up to line 14 
if any item will have an exception and/or exclusion to the Standard Discount Off 
Price List.  Also use this chart for any item that will be offered a different 
discount than the Standard Discount Off List Price percentage specified earlier.  
If needed, additional lines below line 14 can be added to the sheet however 
please retain formatting established in lines 6-14. Please itemize any entries by 
the chart columns ‘Category/Item’, ‘Is this an Exception, Exclusion?’, ‘If Non-
Standard Discount, what is the modified %?’ and provide a detailed 
‘Description’.”  
 
The Cost Proposal Excel workbook, 
“RFP#7550208OfficeSuppliesCostProposal”,  Tab E1 has been amended 
accordingly and the updated version will be included with the .zip file 
“7550208A1” posted in conjunction with this addendum. 
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7. Question: Regarding the Promotional Products tab (F-1), where a color is not 
specified, or a number of colors are not specified, how are bidders to proceed (i.e.  
providing pricing on a single color of its choosing?) 
Answer: The Vendor can provide a common color(s) either of its choosing and/or 
known to be most frequently used in their response. 
 

8. Question: Will the State accept a flash drive in place of a CD-R for the purpose of 
electronic submission? 
Answer: No, CD-Rs only. 
 

9. Question: Regarding RFP Section 8:  Response Contents, subsection 1, we have 
been unable to locate on the RI Division of Purchases Internet home page at 
www.purchasing.ri.gov the ‘Bidder Certification Cover Sheet’ referenced in this 
section of the RFP.  Can the state provide any more specific instructions on where 
on the site that form may be found? 
Answer: The Vendor needs to register in or log in (if already registered) our 
RIVIP system to get a copy of the “Bidder Certification Cover Sheet” at 
http://www.purchasing.ri.gov/RIVIP/VendorRegistration.aspx.  Once the Vendor 
is logged in and downloads the applicable bid, the “Bidder Certification Cover 
Sheet” will download with the bid.  If you need further technical assistance on 
this, please call 401-574-8100 for assistance. 
 

10. Question: Through Freedom of Information Act we are requesting last year’s 
usage to be used in this RFP. 
Answer: See the answer to question #3 above. 

 
11. Question: Is this the office product bid for all entities of the state? 

(Municipalities, schools, colleges, etc.?) 
Answer: See the answer to question #1 above. 
 

12. Question: The annual spend on the RFP says it will be around $10 million per 
year, is that correct? Or is that over the course of the 3 year contract? 
Answer: See the answer to question #2 above. 

 
13. Question: What percentage of ordering is done online? 

Answer: The majority of the ordering is done online.  The State is requiring 
Phone and Fax options for ordering as we have many Divisions that are working 
in the field and sites with limitations that would benefit from additional ordering 
options.   
 

14. Question: In regards to the scope of Work question #23 where it asks about our 
ability to provide office paper and toner in their order of preference (page 27 for 
paper and 28 for toner). Are you asking for something set up within the ordering 
site that only allows purchasers to choose in order of preference, blocking, or 
something else? 
Answer:  

http://www.purchasing.ri.gov/
http://www.purchasing.ri.gov/RIVIP/VendorRegistration.aspx
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• RE: Paper - The State is looking for the lowest cost option with the 
greatest EPP attributes as outlined in Section 3.23.3.1 (page 27).  We 
itemized our EPP requirements and are looking to the Vendor to evaluate 
these requirements with their cost proposal to propose a recycled paper 
option.  Please note the “Requirements and Preferences” in Section 
3.23.3.2 (page 27) will be applicable in the proposed product. 

• RE: Toner - The State is looking for all three (3) options in the cost 
proposal response as outlined in 3.23.5.1(page 27) as well as the health 
standards as outlined in 3.23.5.2 (pages 27-28). 

 
15. Question: Please verify the annual promotional product spend that is generated 

from this contract.  
Answer:  The specific spend is not available as it typically part of an overall 
program where promotional items are built in to the overall budget.  In addition, 
Member Entities do purchase promotional items as well however we do not have 
their spend data.  It is the State’s intention to provide State and Member Entities 
another vehicle to purchase promotional items with potentially better price breaks 
than current options. Please propose the best pricing options based on tiered 
quantities in your Cost Proposal as outlined in section 5.F (pages 46-47) of the 
RFP. 
 

16. Question: Are the sku’s listed on the Promo market basket custom order drop 
ship items, or are they currently stocked in a warehouse and shipped on demand? 
Answer: Custom Ordered. The State maintains NO inventory or stock of 
Promotional items. 

 
17. Question: Are you able to provide MFG numbers for the items in the promotional 

product market basket? 
Answer: No. The State is looking for the Vendor to either supply a reasonable 
match to the item description provided.  The State has no preference to a 
manufacturer. See 5.16.F  on page 46, “The State included a list of fifty-nine (59) 
sample items purchased previously and requests the Vendor either suggests 
comparable items for the sample items provided as well as supplements this list 
with additional options of the most commonly purchased items to bring the list to 
a total of one hundred (100) items.  Or the Vendor can provide a list of one 
hundred (100) of the most commonly purchased items in this category. There are 
no brand preferences however items shall meet the requirements as outlined in 
Section 3.23.4” 

 
18. Question: What percentage of your promotional product spend is custom ordered, 

and what percentage is inventoried and in-stock?  
Answer: 100% custom ordered.  The State maintains no inventory or stock of 
Promotional items. 
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19.  Question: Will the winning bidder be required to assume any current inventory 
of promotional products, if yes what is the approximate value of your inventory 
today? 
Answer: No.  The State maintains no inventory or stock of Promotional items. 
 

20. Question:  Does the State have a current e-store for promotional products?   
Answer: No.  
  

21. Question: Will this be a single source award for both the OP and the Promotional 
Product Category?  Or will they possibly split the contract?   
Answer: On Page 3, in Section 1, second paragraph, “The State reserves the 
right to award the MPA to multiple vendors or a single vendor.”  
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